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CHAIR MOLINA: .. .(gavel) . .. The Committee of the Whole meeting for January 3,2006 is now in session.
For the record, we have in attendance Vice-Chairperson Kane, Committee Members Anderson, Carroll,
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Mateo, Hokama, Pontanilla, Tavares, and Molina. Excused is Member Johnson. Good morning and
Happy New Year, Members!
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Happy New Year!
CHAIR MOLINA: Glad to see you all. I hope you had a wonderful holiday season and I'm sure like myself
you've put on a pound or two during this wonderful holiday season. So hope you are all recovered and
ready to take on the work of the people once again. Members, we have several items on our agenda for
this morning, but before we do that the Chair will give the public an opportunity to testify on any of our
Committee items here for today. We do have one person that has signed up for public testimony on
Committee of the Whole Item 2(15). I'd like to call upon someone very familiar, Mr. DeGray
Vanderbilt, up to the lectern. And just to go over the rules once again, you'll be given three minutes to
testify with a minute to conclude and as a courtesy to the testifier and to the Committee, please tum off
all cell phones and pagers. Mr. Vanderbilt, good morning .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
MR. VANDERBILT: Happy New Year, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee of the Whole. My name is
DeGray Vanderbilt, a resident of Molokai and I'm here just to lend my support to Lynn DeCoite to
replace Mike Tancayo on the Molokai Planning Commission. It's unfortunate we lost Mike, but his
work schedule just conflicted with everything. But as far as Lynn is concerned, one of the nice things
about her is that she's young. She's part of the future of Molokai and she's an active homestead farmer
and very knowledgeable on the water issues on Molokai, and I think it's really important that there be
such a person on the Molokai Planning Commission. So I just wanted to come up here today and lend
my support to Ms. DeCoite. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Vanderbilt. Committee Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you.
Is there anyone else that would like to testify on our agenda items here today? Committee Secretary,
any other sign ups?
MS. BALALA: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Seeing none. If there are no objections, Members, the Chair will close testimony for
today's agenda items.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Seeing no objections, the testimony for our agenda items has been closed.

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
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CHAIR MOLINA: Prior to getting on to our first item here, Chair would also like to recognize the presence of
Staff. We have our Committee Analyst, Richelle Kawasaki-Lu and also Shelly Espeleta, and Committee
Secretary, Clarita Balala.

COW-2(lS)

NOMINATIONS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS (VARIOUS)
(C.C. No. 05-20)

CHAIR MOLINA: Our first order of business has to do with Committee of the Whole Item 2(15), nominations
to boards, committees, and commissions. The Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated
November 22, 2005 from the Mayor requesting consideration of the following: A) to the Commission
on Children and Youth, Rafael Boritzer, replacing Roxanne French, for a term expiring on March 31,
2006; to the Commission on Culture and the Arts, Richard Obley, replacing John DeMello, for a term
expiring on March 31, 2006; to the Cost of Government Commission, Albert Newsham, replacing Todd
Hondo, for a term expiring on March 31, 2006; to the Fire and Public Safety Commission, Angel AlIas,
replacing A. Doulgas Daguay, for a term expiring on March 31, 2010; to the Maui County Commission
on Persons with Disabilities, Ramoda Anand, replacing Laura Gima, for a term expiring on March 31,
2007; to the Maui County Grants Review Committee, Carl Shelton, replacing Rita Whitford, for a term
expiring on March 31, 2010; to the Molokai Planning Commission, Lynn DeCoite, replacing Michael
Tancayo, Ir., for a term expiring on March 31, 2009; to the Salary Commission, Dale Webster, replacing
Anthony Lemmo, for a term expiring on March 31, 2009; and to the Urban Design Review Board,
Victor Fink, replacing Paul Homer, for a term expiring on March 31, 2008. And Members, regarding
that matter, we received a letter from the Mayor ... from a letter that Mr. Fink had sent to the Mayor's
Office indicating he will not like to be considered for this board so Mr. Fink will ... has withdrew his
nomination for consideration on that matter.
At this point, the Chair will yield to Mr. DeLeon from the Mayor's Office to gIve any opemng
comments.
MR. DELEON: Good morning and Happy New Year's. What we have here is a list of replacements due to
resignations and just filling in ... filling in for where we can. These are people who applied for the
positions that they were appointed to.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. DeLeon. Any questions, Members, for Mr. DeLeon?
Seeing none. Any request for separation on the nominees before the Chair makes a recommendation?
Okay. Seeing no request for separation, the Chair will ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I want to separate (D), Fire and Public Safety Commission.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. There's been a request for separation for the Fire and Public Safety Commission
nominee, Angel AlIas, replacing A. Douglas Daguay, for a term expiring on March 31, 2010. Any other
request for separation? Member Kane.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Just a point of clarification first maybe, Mr. Chair, if I may? For the Urban Design
Review Board, because Victor Fink name was formally submitted, even if we have a withdrawal of the
nomination, do we have to vote, just for clarity, do we have to vote no on Victor Fink?
CHAIR MOLINA: That is a good question. I will yield to Staff on that. Ms. Kawasaki.
MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. Chair, the County Council passed an ordinance a while back that allows for nominees
to withdraw by notifying the County Council. Mr. Fink did notify the Mayor. The Mayor did then
notify the Council Chair of his withdrawal; and therefore, there's no need to vote no on this particular
one. It would just be as though you were acknowledging his withdrawal.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So, therefore, because it's an up or down vote, in this case do we file this then?
CHAIR MOLINA: I believe under that ... I believe ...
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Therefore, the request for separation may be relevant in this case?
MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. Chair, in this situation there's no need to separate. It would just be when the Chair
makes his recommendation, he would be moving to recommend approval of certain nominations and
then Mr. Fink's would not be considered in that motion because he has since withdrawn.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. So, Ms. Kawasaki, again just for clarification so
basically we would not even consider the nominee for the Urban Design Review Board, we don't have
to take a formal vote. We can just, for the Committee record's sake, that this person was not considered
because of his resignation?
MS. KAWASAKI: Correct. In the Committee Report, the Staff would note the receipt of the correspondence
from the Mayor's Office transmitting Mr. Fink's withdrawal.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any other questions before the Chair makes his
recommendation? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Although this is not for this Committee I just
would like to note that in his letter he's also resigning from the GPAC. So I imagine we need to
transmit this to the Planning Committee.
CHAIR MOLINA: That may be the case. Thank you, Member Anderson. Mr. DeLeon.
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MR. DELEON: The gentleman was a Mayor's appointment to the GPAC. He was the Mayor's appointment to
the GP AC so the Planning Department was alerted to this actually before I even knew about it because
they were communicating for setting up meetings.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ...
MR. DELEON: He alerted them that he was ... he had changed his status.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So the Mayor's Office will make a replacement?
MR. DELEON: At least that's the way we're looking at it. I'm gonna have a discussion with the Planning
Department and possibly Corporation Counsel about that to see how we're going to approach it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great! Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Members, any other questions prior to the Chair's
recommendation? Okay. Members, at this point, the Chair will make a recommendation to support the
nominees to the following boards, committees, and commissions. The Chair will entertain a motion to
support the nominees for the Commission on Children and Youth, to the Commission on Culture and the
Arts, Cost of Government Commission, Maui County Commission on Persons with Disabilities, Maui
County Grants Review Committee, Molokai Planning Commission, and Salary Commission.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Tavares. Member Kane as
the make ofthe motion, any discussion?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No discussion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Seeing no discussion. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Mateo, Pontanilla
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROV AL of the nominations of Rafael Boritzer to the
Commission on Children and Youth; Richard Obley to the
Commission on Culture and the Arts; Albert Newsham to the Cost
of Government Commission; Ramoda Anand to the Maui County
Commission on Persons with Disabilities; Carl Shelton to the Maui
County Grants Review Committee; Lynn DeCoite to Molokai
Planning Commission; and Dale Webster to the Salary
Commission. (Victor Fink withdrew.)

CHAIR MOLINA: Members, we now have the other commission that has been requested for separation for
discussion, Fire and Public Safety Commission. Member Hokama, the Chair will yield the floor to you
as the Member who made the request for separation-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: --to open up discussion on this matter. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, Mr. Allas is one of our old time, not old time, he's a long time
resident, not old.
works for Castle and Cooke. We have supported his placement on the General
Plan Advisory Committee for the Island of Lanai. I have always taken the position, Chairman, of not
appointing members of our County, not only of my community, to multiple County boards and
commissions. I thought at one time it was a County ordinance. I believe it is not. But I will not
continue ... I will not support placing members on multiple county boards and commissions. I think
Mr. Allas serves us better as a General Planning Advisory Committee member. I think there are others
that I'll be happy to put forward to sit on the Fire and Public Safety Commission and that would be my
position and I would ask the Members for their support.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. Mr. DeLeon, do you have any comments on this?
MR. DELEON: Of all the nominees before you today, Mr. AlIas, is the most appropriate for the position he's
being nominated to. He is the Operations Chief for Lanai Company. He is the person when there's an
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emergency on the island, he's the person who'll be the go-to guy when we need help over there. He's
also the head of the Red Cross on the island. It's not just fire, it's also about the public safety which
implies civil defense. He's the most logical person with the most resources and that was why this is our
second nomination ofthis gentleman to this position.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. DeLeon, was there any concerns regarding his time and availability to serve on this
commission because of his ... now he will be on the General Plan Advisory Committee and we've
heard that will take up a lot of time. Was time an issue for this person?
MR. DELEON: No, sir. He reapplied for this position.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Committee Members, comments or questions on this matter? Member
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. DeLeon, do you know how often the Fire
and Public Safety Commission meets?
MR. DELEON: I believe it's monthly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Once a month, and they meet during the day, right?
MR. DELEON: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Whereas the GPAC would be meeting in the evenings. Okay. Thank
you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Member Anderson. Committee Members, any other
questions or comments as it relates to the nominee for this commission, Fire and Public Safety?
Member Hokama, any last words in response to the comments given by Mr. DeLeon?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I have not been satisfied with high management personnel sitting on some
of our major boards and commissions from Lanai in the past and I don't think this is a good choice right
now, Chairman. So I won't support the nomination.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any other comments or questions? Okay. Members, at
this point, the Chair will call for a brief recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

9:14 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:17 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: .. .(gavel) . .. The Committee of the Whole meeting for January 3,2006 is now in session.
Members, we last left off on considering Mr. Angel AlIas for the Fire and Public Safety Commission,
replacing A. Douglas Daguay, for a term expiring on March 31, 2010, and we have heard from various
Members with regards to the concerns of having Mr. AlIas on this commission. At this point, the Chair
- 7-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

January 3, 2006

upon hearing the comments being made has no recommendation at this point, and the Chair will leave it
to the body. Normally, the Chair personally is very open to any member of the public who wants to
apply for a board or commission unless there's any major background issues with the applicant, but
we've heard the concerns from the Lanai representative, Mr. Hokama. So at this point, I will leave it to
the ... any Member on the floor who wants to make a recommendation on Mr. AlIas. The floor is open,
Members.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, move to deny.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. A motion has been made to deny by Member Hokama and seconded by Member
Kane. Mr. Hokama, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No further discussion, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any other questions or concerns on this matter? Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm going to be supporting the motion on the floor and it
has nothing to do with the capabilities or what has been described by Mr. DeLeon as far as him being
the go-to guy over in Lanai. I think it comes down to again, we asked for and got a commitment from
Mr. Allas for the General Plan Advisory Committee, which I think this body, as well as Administration
deemed as one of the most important ones ... committees that people are going to serve on and that we
are going to expect the 110 percent. So it's going to make it difficult I think to expect somebody to have
double duties and I think it would be in the best interest that we do find somebody else and that doesn't
preclude Mr. AlIas from still having some participating options with the Public Safety Commission. So
I think, I think following along with Mr. Hokama on this case and preventing people from having
multiple duties in commissions would be a better thing for us to go with. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. Any other questions or comments as it relates to the
recommendation made on the floor regarding Mr. Allas' appointment to the Fire and Public Safety
Commission? The Chair will make a comment on this matter. Again, I stated earlier I am usually very
open to anyone from the public who wants to serve the community on a board or commission provided
there's no major concerns with their background and I see Mr. Allas has no major issues in terms of
background. It was mentioned earlier that the Fire and Public Safety Commission meets in the day and
the GP AC would typically meet at night. So I believe in giving people a chance to do double duty in
this case but I don't know the people on Lanai as well as Mr. Hokama does. So I will support but it is
with reservations on this motion to deny Mr. Allas just based on the fact of giving people a benefit of the
doubt and giving them an opportunity. However, if the work on the GP AC is overwhelm . . .
overwhelming and it comes to the point where Mr. AlIas, should he have been appointed to this
commission and have a problem with doing double duty, so to speak, then this motion to deny would
have been vindicated. But as it is for now, I will reluctantly support this motion to deny. So that's all I
have to say on this matter. Mr. PontanilIa, you had a comment?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I'm supporting the motion but I think we need to
talk to Mr. Allias [sic] in regards to the double duties that, you know, we've asked ... asking him to do
as a member of the General Plan, as well as a committee member for the Fire and Public Safety. Ifhe's
the go-to guy, then you know, he should be, you know, considered for Public ... Fire and Public Safety.
And that does not preclude him from ... it'll be involved in the General Plan process. You know, like
Member Hokama has said, the time that's going to be involved doing both jobs may, you know, may
hamper his ability. So I think we need to talk to Mr. Allias [sic] to see what he wants to do - either
serve on the General Plan as an Advisory Committee member or serve on the Fire and Public Safety
Commission. If he does select the Fire and Public Safety Commission, then he's able to at least
participate in the General Plan process for Lanai. The meeting is open to all members of the public and
he should have a say in regards to the General Planning for the Lanai island. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Any other comments? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. You know, it's unfortunate that we're being asked to
deny somebody who has volunteered for double duty because we have such a hard time finding people
to participate in our commissions and boards. And the fact is that he's I think ideally suited for this
commission because he has background in this area and he could probably bring . . . bring that
background to the commission and help them in making more informed decisions. So it's my
understanding that he did volunteer for this double duty because of his expertise in this area. So I would
like to ask Mr. DeLeon ifhe's position is denied on this commission, if there are other people that could
fill this position on Lanai?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. DeLeon.
MR. DELEON: I believe I have two open vac ... two open applicants right now that I could approach at this
point. They don't have the kind of experience this gentleman has but we did this once before when we
brought another gentleman in, and then he never even attended a meeting and he withdrew, and that's
what we're replacing right now. So this gentleman actually applied for this position. The other folks
did not apply for this position but I could probably speak to one of them to see whether I can get one of
them to serve. Of course, on Lanai you do have a limited resource so you don't get swamped with
applications and my real problem right now is with the Lanai Planning Commission and it's just because
everybody went to the GPAC I can't put them on the Planning Commission now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for that. You know, I'm going to reluctantly support
Mr. Hokama's motion because he is from Lanai and he does know the people involved and because
Mr. Alai [sic] works for Lanai Company I think whenever we have a chance to get somebody else, you
know, that has a broader representation of Lanai I think we should go for it. But it's unfortunate
because I think he's really well-suited for this commission. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Members, any other comments? Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: For the second and final time, Chair, thank you. I wanted to ask regarding the Fire and
Public Safety Commission, has there been issues with quorum, Mr. DeLeon?
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MR. DELEON: Not to my knowledge.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. Any other comments or concerns before the vote is
called? One final note, the Chair would like to ask for the future, Members, if there's any issues with
any particular nominee, the Chair would appreciate hearing from you sooner. Because I think we could
have ... if the Committee had heard sooner, we could have given Mr. Allas an opportunity to come
here, and you know, basically expose himself to any inquiry from this Committee if there were concerns
about his nominee. But as it is today he has not been afforded a chance to at least give his thoughts on
being denied for this Public Safety Commission. So those are just my comments. So, again, I will
support with reservations this recommendation for denial to the Fire and Public Safety Commission
regarding Mr. Angel Allas. Okay, the Chair is ready to call for the vote. All those in favor signify by
saymg aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous. The applicant
has been denied to the Fire and Public Safety Commission.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION :

DISAPPROVAL of the nomination of Angel AlIas to the Fire and
Public Safety Commission.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members. I believe that takes care of Committee of the Whole Item 2(15). We now
go on to Committee of the Whole Item 19, the State Fire Code. Before that, the Chair would like to
acknowledge the presence of Member Johnson. Good morning, Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Good morning.

COW-19

STATE FIRE CODE (CC No. 05-90)
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, this item is the State Fire Code. The Committee is in receipt of County
Communication No. 05-90 from the Fire Chief transmitting a proposed bill to adopt the State Fire Code
with modifications. Committee Report No. 05-144 was recommitted. The correspondence is dated
November 28, 2005 from the Fire Chief transmitting a draft bill to adopt the State Fire Code with
modifications, and we also received another correspondence dated December 15,2005 from your Chair
of this Committee transmitting a revised proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
ADOPTING THE STATE FIRE CODE, WITH CERTAIN AMENDMENTS THERETO", and the
purpose of the revised proposed bill is to adopt the State Fire Code with modifications. And we have
joining us this morning, and by the way, the Chair was remiss in not mentioning the attendance of our
Corporation Counsel, Mr. Brian Moto, for our earlier item. My apologies, Mr. Moto. We have from the
Corporation Counsel's Office, we have Mr. J.D. Kim and from the Department we have Chief
Kaupalolo, as well as Captain Martin, and Lieutenant English joining us this morning for this particular
item. Any opening comments from the Department, as well as from Corporation Counsel? I'll yield to
either Mr. Kim or Mr. Kaupalolo. Who would like to give their opening comments? Chief.
MR. KAUP ALOLO: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and Happy New Year to all of you here. I think this is starting off
to be a great year. This morning the Department is happy to come before you and this is regarding the
State Fire Code, a bill for an ordinance to adopt the State Fire Code with certain amendments. The real
purpose of the request here is a revision of the proposed bill to reinstate the fund to allow the
expenditures of the funds and these funds are the Plans Review Process and Inspection Revolving Fund.
And this morning I appreciate your indulgence and the Department's request to work through and the
passage of the State Fire Code. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chief. Members, any questions for Chief Kaupalolo at this point? Member
Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair, maybe Staff can assist us in giving us the reference point since this is a rather
lengthy Fire Code.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: That particular area of the discussion with respects to the reincorporation of the funding.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Staff.
MS. KAWASAKI: On your most recent transmittal from the Department of Fire and Public Safety attached is a
draft bill, an unsigned bill, and in that bill there is a section of the bill that is highlighted in gray with,
excuse me, with some brackets in it and that's on Page 5. That's the only insertion of language there.
Subsequent to receipt of that correspondence, which was dated November 28, 2005 and received on
December 9th , the Department of Corporation Counsel did transmit a proposed bill which is a signed bill
that does not reflect that funny shading in there. It's just an actual bill with the Ramseyered language
showing.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Staff. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah. I'm looking at the December 15 th doc trans. Is that the item that's not
highlighted and so it's on Page 5? Can we just, again, instead of flipping through all the different ones?
I'm looking at the latest one that we have.
CHAIR MOLINA: I know. I've been looking at the November 28 th with the shaded ...
MS. KAWASAKI: November 28th is the one with the shaded portion that clearly shows what was added back
to the bill, and then Corporation Counsel because they cannot submit a bill in that format with signature,
redid the bill without the shading.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. For the body's information, what is the number or what section of the bill is that in?
MS. KAWASAKI: That's on Page 5.
CHAIR MOLINA: I believe that had to do with the fund.
MS. KAWASAKI: It is called section ... the section number shows on Page 4,103.3.2.1. It's called General.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members. Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I've located it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. If there are no questions for the Chief at this point, the Chair would like
to get ... Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. I just, just quickly, Chairman, as you may have
recalled during our HSAC meeting a few weeks ago on the Big Island with our colleagues, I believe we
had some comments from Mr. Russell Saito from the State government either as a Director or the
Comptroller of his area of responsibility. And if I recall correctly, Mr. Chairman, I believe Mr. Saito
made reference to adjustments to the Building Code, Plumbing Code, Electrical Code, and that they
were moving toward a mechanism to update faster than how the other counties have traditionally
updated its Uniform Codes and that each county may at time have all different years of application. It
has been a ... I guess a detriment for contractors to bid Statewide since each county operates slightly on
a different format or different year of approvals or permitted uses. I'm asking to see if this Code or is
the Chief aware of what the State is doing and would this Code be a part of that ongoing review and be
part of the parameters of what the State is trying to have the State Legislature consider during this
upcoming Legislative Session, Chief?
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief.
MR. KAUP ALOLO: Thank you, Chair, and thank you, Mr. Hokama. Yes, the Department is aware. In fact, at
our second quarter State Fire Council meeting we were apprised by Battalion Chief Lloyd Rogers who
represents the State Fire Council on that committee. Apparently, yes, that is correct what you're stating.
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There is a move to, I guess, before the Legislature, if I may say, a committee that's been appointed to
review these kinds of issues, and I think that it's very well taken for them to do that. Because we are ...
exactly what we're trying to do, ladies and gentlemen, exactly what we're trying to do here we're trying
to get on board. We're in the 1988 Fire Code, correct, Val? Honolulu City and County is on the '97 so
you see the dilemma that we are faced here just locally trying to be uniform throughout the State. So
that is I think a positive move, you know, to be able to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, ifl may, please?
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So what you asking us with this new updated version, if I can use that term,
Chief, which would be the '97 edition, you asking us to go up to the '97 version of the Fire Code. Is that
correct? From the '80 ... '88 ...
MR. KAUPALOLO: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. What we are being asked to do in no way would be hampered by the
efforts of what is being done more on a State level? Are we in sync? Are we kind of drifting into ...
MR. KAUPALOLO: We're involved in the process and I think that's the important part that we have a say into
that and the State Fire Code is part of that process. The process though, as you mentioned, involves
architects, your people .. .(change tape) . .. the different County agencies in there, including the State.
So we're part of that process and we do have a voice and I think that's going to be the important part for
us - for each county.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Nothing with that would hamper us in moving this forward, Chief?
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief.
MR. KAUP ALOLO: I will let Val ... he wants to comment on this.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Chief.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Mr. Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Hokama, basically what had happened because of the concerns that you
brought up, Statewide and contractors, you know, having red tape and dealing with each jurisdiction
who has different codes, the task force was formed with representatives from various State agencies, and
again, Battalion Chief Lloyd Rogers represents the State Fire Council there. And at this point, I spoke to
him personally about a month ago on it at a meeting and he told me at that time that it's not anything
that's gonna be done soon, probably in several years at the earliest when they would pull something
together and make it happen and that's his, that's his word. He has been sitting on the committee from
the beginning and basically it's just what the task, task force came up with and he doesn't expect
anything to be done anytime soon or even if the Fire Code is going to be involved with that. Of course,
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the Fire Departments, they're not in general consensus with someone else having control over the Fire
Code, as you can imagine. So that's his words and he sat on the committee, and he said this is not
something that's gonna happen anytime soon.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Chairman, final comment before I relinquish the floor, and thank
you. I just share this with the Captain, our Captain Martin, that I just bring up this question because it
was my understanding from Mr. Saito who shared his thoughts with us maybe about three weeks ago,
Mr. Kane, as our President of our State Association. That my understanding was this last session there
will be a legislative submittal in a proposal form for consideration and I'm looking at that as being all of
two weeks away for the Legislator ... Legislature to start. So I just bring it forward that you also may
want to follow-up on it from the Fire Code point of view, Chief, and that's all.
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief.
MR. KAUP ALOLO: Chair, if I may? Councilmember Hokama, that's my understanding, too, from our last
meeting that it is before the Legislature and that is the committee's proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama.
Department? Member Johnson.

Committee Members, any other questions for the

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thanks so much and if you've already in past sessions, if you've
already addressed this, please let me know. With regard to explosive materials and that's I believe on
14, is there a designated individual who is in charge within your Department for all of the explosives,
you know, for the actual permit for the explosives themselves or is that with a State agency? Because I
remember reading something at one point where with regard to explosives, there is some designated
individual who is responsible for oversight on explosive materials and I just wondered if this particular
wording was consistent with that or if it was just addressing only the aspect that you deal with.
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Ms. Johnson.
share that for you.

gonna have Captain Martin

CHAIR MOLINA: Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Thank you for your question, Ms. Johnson. The explosives permits do corne from the Fire
Prevention Bureau. Currently, we classify the explosives . . . 1.3 is the classification of your common
what we use for, excuse me, 1.4 is for fireworks; 1.3 is a higher classification is when the Bureau of
Alcohol and Tobacco and Firearms get involved. We do issue permits for that for the storage. There are
requirements where multiple agencies have to be notified when they're transported and right now we
have one licensed area where they can have explosives. So if ... I hope that answers your question.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and the reason this came up was because there ... I did some
investigation about a complaint with somebody who was doing blasting over in the Lahaina area, and I
remember having to go through a long protracted process to find out who actually monitored the use of
explosives and it may have been someone, it was such a long while ago, I couldn't remember if it was
someone in your Department, but it may have been somebody with Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms.
CHAIR MOLINA: Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Ms. Johnson, I believe that maybe above the Lahaina Cannery, I know they were doing
blasting up there. We do have Blasting Technologies, who is a subsidiary of Goodfellows, who has a
license and who has the license to store. That's the only company I'm aware of that's doing blasting and
they were doing blasting in the Lahaina area.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and I believe that's what the situation was. And with regard to ...
had one other question, too, and that was on Page 5 under 103.3.2.2, on Inspection requests and it would
be the second sentence of the second paragraph, the inspections shall take place between the hours of
0800 to 1630. Most of the things that I see within our Code it will not list a military time. It will just
list from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and I just wondered because they seemed a little different. If this was
something that was required to be consistent with I guess other regulations or what other counties are
doing or if this is the way that it's always been expressed?
CHAIR MOLINA:
necessary.

May I have a response either from the Department or Corporation Counsel, if it is

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And the reason I ask it, Mr. Chair, is because so many times people, unless
they've been in the military, it's like what time is that? They're so used to seeing, well, 8:00 a.m. to
3:00 p.m. or 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. So when it's expressed that way that's what the average citizen is
going to be looking at. So if we're looking at trying to do this for the average citizen, I ask that if there
could be a change, to make the change.
CHAIR MOLINA: Sure. Okay. Mr. Kim.
MR. KIM: Mr. Chair, at the request of Member Johnson, we can change the time to reflect standard time
instead of military time.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I think ...
MR. KIM: Or we can do, we can do both.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. I would prefer . . . unless there's some logical reason why it's
expressed this way, I just think for the average person who's reading it, it might be a little easier just to
put it the way that we usually see most times expressed.
MR. KIM: The Code basically for the Fire Department they operate on military time so I believe that's why it
was expressed as such.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If it's easier for them, then you know, if they're going to be interpreting it, I
mean I leave it up to the Department. But because . . . if the person who is reading this wanted to I
guess understand it a little bit better. If it's mostly for your internal use, then I have no problem with it.
But you know, it was just a question that came to my mind because most other things that we see in the
County Code are expressed differently.
MR. KIM: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Mr. Kim.
MR. KIM: We can amend it and to include both times.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would defer to the Chief.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Chief Kaupalolo.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yes. Thank you, Member Johnson. That is correct, you know. We operate on military
time so we go like 0745 to 1630 and the reason for that 'cause our reporting system is built that way so
it's, you know, part of the process that we have. So we think that way and when we read our codes, it's
pretty much the same generic timeframe, but that would be the only reason why we use that time. And
also when we do our fire reports, the times are listed and the times that we get from central dispatch are
basically those kinds oftimes. They're based on military 24-hour clock.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson. And I guess, Chief, maybe this maybe sound like a
silly question, but I believe is the Fire Department considered paramilitary like that of the Police and
that may be the rationale for the use of military time, as well as preference?
MR. KAUP ALOLO: Chair, I would concur maybe a semi-military we're really there. That type of an outfit I
guess.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. And Mr. Kim, so the ... to add the I guess the so-called normal or civilian time, this
wouldn't be a substantive change that would require a formal amendment of that nature?
MR. KIM: No, sir.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So ifthere's no objections, I guess if that could be incorporated into the bill. If the
... does the body have any objections to incorporating I guess civilian time along with that of the
military time in the Code? Any objections? This is something for consideration for the body. Member
Pontanilla, comments.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. Question for the Chief. In regards to our Emergency Operation
Center, how do we work? Do we use military time or regular standard time?
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CHAIR MOLINA: Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Chair, Mr. Pontanilla, we do use the military time, yeah. So ... I mean that's the
operations that we have that's currently existing.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I'll yield ifthere's more questions in this area. I have a question in another area, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Any other questions with regards to the issue of the inclusion of civilian time in the
Code, as well as military time? Any other questions related to that matter? Seeing none. Member
Kane, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. In response to an October 4th letter from Smith Development,
the Chief responded on October 1it, and specifically, the question was from Smith Development.
Corporation Counsel should prepare an opinion in how conflicts with Title 18 will be handled and the
response from our Chief was this question should be referred to Corporation Counsel for direction. Did
the Committee note this response and then follow-up with a question to Corporation Counsel to deal
with the question of any potential or alleged conflicts with Title 18?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Staff? Okay. It could take a moment. In the meantime, while Staff is looking for
answers, Mr. Kim, do you have any comments?
MR. KIM: I have no comments at this time.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. We'll take a brief moment for Staff to see if that question was issued. I know that
we do have the letter from Mr. Arakawa, I believe, from Public Works in response to that concern that
was brought up by Smith Development. It's October 17,2005 in your binders, Members. Staff, do you
need a brief recess? Okay. Briefrecess subject to the call of the Chair... .(gavel) . ..
RECESS:

9:48 3.m.

RECONVENE:

9:553.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel). .. The Committee of the Whole meeting for January 3, 2006 is now back in
session. Thank you very much, Members, for that break. We had last left off with a question from
Member Kane to the Department, as well as to the Corporation Counsel's Office with regards to a
response on a concern related on possible conflict of the Fire Code, a concern that was brought up by
Smith Development. At this point, the Chair will yield the floor to Mr. Kim from Corporation Counsel
to give comment on this and then to Mr. Kane and the Department. Mr. Kim.
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MR. KIM: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Historically, as I understand it, a Fire Code is much stricter than the
Subdivision Standards, and therefore, for public safety purposes, 1) the Fire Department reviews
subdivision plans and they enforce their stricter requirements, especially for their equipment and fire
apparatus to have access to the subdivision. Therefore, generally as I understand it, the Public Works
Department will yield to comments from the Fire Department and their regulations.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kim. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So the question is, are there any potential conflicts, and if so, have they been identified,
and if so, your response now is based on that? Have you folks done ... have you folks looked at this
bill relative to any type of potential conflicts or stricter guidelines? Is that something that has been
already identified and, and your response there is to respond to those, those conflicts or those different
variations in the bill and Title 18?
MR. KIM: Historically, what has occurred is that the subdivision plans will be submitted to both departments.
Our Department is then asked to comment and asked to enforce . . . well, at that point when each
subdivision is ... sits on its on, and at that point our inspectors will look at it and see whether or not
those standards that's drawn into the subdivision plans will meet the Fire Code, and ifnot, then they take
it upon themselves to suggest changes. So there may be conflicts. There's no real internal conflicts at
this point other than looking at what, what is ... might be substandard, a subdivider may ... someone
with a subdivision may try to submit their plans in accordance to the Code and then they won't be able
to meet the Fire Code. They'd have to redo their plans.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. So just to get clear, Mr. Chair, and then I'll let go. I'm just making sure that
what we're forwarding the bill that's not going to contain discrepancies that go beyond the scope of
having just stricter guidelines for public health and safety. You understand?
MR. KIM: Yeah, I ....
VICE-CHAIR KANE: That's my question.
MR. KIM: I believe that that has been worked out between the Fire and Public Safety Department and the
Planning, oh, excuse me, the Public Works Department.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay, and so that's in ... that's ... you're taking that from the response from the Chief
on his October 17th response that he had a meeting with Public Works personnel, then Director Agaran
and Mr. Nakamura?
MR. KIM: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay, and based on that the language that's on Page 19 has been amended. Is that the
case? And if it has been, is there a difference between language that was originally submitted and what
changes have been made to reflect the response that the Chair ... that the Chief has given us in his
October ... October 17th No. 1 response, I believe it is. And thank you, Mr. Chair, for bearing with me.
I'm just making sure that we don't ever get sent back again, yeah.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: We already had it sent back once. I want to avoid that second time. The October 1i h
response from the Chief to you, Mr. Chair, in response to the letter from Mr. Smith, the two meetings
were held with then Director Agaran, Mr. Otani, and Mr. Nakamura, along with Fire Prevention staff,
and it says the wording was reviewed, revised, and agreed upon by Mr. Coloma-Agaran and staff. So is
there language that we can see the change or the revisions that were made and perhaps the Captain can
assist the Chiefwith a response, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Chief.
MR. KAUP ALOLO: Yeah. Captain Martin is going to respond to that, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Kane, the meeting that is referenced here with Mr. Coloma-Agaran was
held approximately two years ago or maybe about 18 months or so, and at that time the wording that we
came up with is the present wording that's in here. When it was first submitted, I believe in May of this
year to the Committee of the Whole, this is the original wording. No changes have been made since
we've begun this process at all. This wording right here has been in place since we submitted this
proposal so we haven't made any changes from our last meetings or any other meetings and we don't
feel at this time that we need to make any changes and we are flexible with the wording here. And I
think that's the main thing with many things that are going on in our community. One example is the
Wailuku Redevelopment Area where originally the narrowing of the streets, you know, we want to
maintain the ambiance of Wailuku. Do we require them to widen the streets now as the Code requires?
We feel that we would probably have resistance to that. You know, if we could agree on certain items
whether people sprinkler the buildings. We have a certain apparatus that can fit there. We're trying to
be flexible to meet the community's needs so that's why the wording here is fairly flexible and it's upon
the approval of the Chief when certain items come up, but yet also we want to maintain some type of
standard, you know, with the access routes, and we are in communication with Public Works.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No. I appreciate the opportunity to broach this area. I think the bottom line, Mr. Chair,
and I'll save my comments for when it's appropriate. Thank you for the questions.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. And Chair did make a request to the Corporation
Counsel's Office should this bill move out of Committee that we get a response to your concerns based
on an October 4th letter that we the Committee did send to the Corporation Counsel for a response on
this particular concern expressed by the Smith Development Company. Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I hope I'm not beating a dead horse but I need
further clarification. I guess it would be Captain Martin probably maybe that could further clarify what
line of questioning Mr. Kane was asking you about. So are you saying that the street width that you
have on Page 19 is the same that's currently in the County Code under Title 18?
CHAIR MOLINA: Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Excuse me, Ms. Anderson, I'm trying to locate it here on Page 19. If you can help me ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 902.2.2.1, Dimensions, fire apparatus access roads, and I'm just picking
this up from what Mr. Kane directed us to. So I'm wondering ... my question is, do you have road
widths in this Fire Code that contradict the road width requirements in the current County Code under
Title 18?
MR. MARTIN: I'm trying to recall and my understanding is that the required road widths in Title 18 is actually
more strict and I'd like to ask Lieutenant English to comment on this since he is better knowledgeable
than I am in this area.
CHAIR MOLINA: Lieutenant English.
MR. ENGLISH: Good morning, Chair,-CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning.
MR. ENGLISH: --Ms. Anderson. What the Fire Code states it's doing the subdivision there is a conflict.
Right now for normal residential area I think the road widths require to be 24 feet and 2 feet curb and
gutter so a total width of 28 feet. We bumped up that to 32 feet in some areas basically because the Fire
Code requires a unobstructed width of 20 feet at all times. So once you get to the smaller subdivisions
people start parking on the width, I mean on the road, squeezing on our widths so we bumped it to 32
feet so allow 6 feet on each side to park and to maintain our 20 feet which the Code requires, and that's
the conflict that we're having with Chapter 18. And like I said, we're normally doing ... we're doing
this, enforcing this only on cul-de-sacs because there's no other way out. The 20 feet is for people to
evacuate out once our truck is there or our trucks will pass each other to protect other houses. Once it
happened before. We got gridlocked people evacuating, our trucks trying to get in. It did happen
before. So we're trying to prevent this from happening again.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So then it does appear there's a conflict with Title 18. So will
Public Works be submitting language to amend Title 18 so it's not in conflict with the Fire Code?
Because it seems to me that, you know, when ... we need to have consistency within the Code and
because your requirements have to do with safety, they're naturally going to supersede what Public
Works already has on the books. So it would probably prevent an awful lot of confusion, and you know,
time on your part to change in your review to change what's been submitted ifit was clear in the Code
what's required. Is there a problem with doing that?
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CHAIR MOLINA: Lieutenant English.
MR. ENGLISH: At this time, no. I've been reviewing the subdivision plans. Another conflict was the turning
radius of the cul-de-sacs. I mean since '86 when we got our first ladder truck, I mean that ladder truck
needs an 80-foot turning radius to turn the truck around. The cul-de-sac is only 70-feet or 35-feet
turning radius. So since then I've been reviewing the subdivision plans to enforce what our trucks need
to turn. The meeting that we had with Public Works Director was more based on a flexible design
subdivision. You may see the bulb-outs to prevent speeding. That reduces the street width even to ...
from the Public Works standards to get to slow down traffic and I've been working with the flexible
design so we can enforce our minimum width and we still have those flexible designs. So I think it's an
ongoing process 'cause that flexible design that was passed it was sent down to me for my approval
anyway because they go away from even Chapter 18 and they adopted that flexible design I think maybe
about a year ago for some subdivisions.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is that in reference to ... under the section I just noted, Dimensions, it
says under Item 3, "When special design subdivisions are approved by the chief, the requirements ofthis
section may be modified"?
MR. ENGLISH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So just so I'm clear, Mr. Chair, is Public Works going to change their
language?
MR. ENGLISH: I really can't answer for them. I've worked with them on couple committees to try and update
the Chapter 18 and I think it's working pretty okay right now where it is. I'm thinking we're gonna
leave it. One of the problems was our ... where our larger trucks are. I can enforce like ... I cannot
enforce our larger cul-de-sac on Lanai because we don't have the big trucks on Lanai or on Molokai or
in Hana. So when it comes down to the subdivision area, we cannot put it in stone that says all
cul-de-sacs gonna be 80 feet diameter because-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.
MR. ENGLISH: --we don't have our trucks in Kula and Hana.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. ENGLISH: So we gotta keep ... we cannot be consistent in that. I'm just going to enforce it where our
larger trucks serve. So that was one of the big ... biggest hang up that we had so we're going to
continue to do it the way we've been doing it and most of the designers they've given me the plans
already suiting to what we have now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They're already informed.
MR. ENGLISH: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yeah, that's good. Okay. I'm satisfied with that. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. If ... Member Anderson, you are free to, of course, ask a
question of the Public Works Department or we can do it on your behalf to get a response, you know,
from Public Works as an FYI if that is something you're interested in?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I mean I think even though there will be exceptions because as you
said there's only going to be certain areas in the County where these trucks wouldn't be used so it
wouldn't be necessary. But I think as a standard we really would like to have a consistency in the Code.
I think when people are looking at building a subdivision, they look at Title 18. They don't look at the
Fire Code, you know, until their plans are sent back and then they have to change it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Good point.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that would save time on everyone's part ifit was consistent.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. We'll make note of that ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then Title 18 could also have an exception section to provide for this
variability I guess. And there may be a day when you'll have a big fire truck in some of these places.
Who knows?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any other questions or comments before the Chair makes a
recommendation? Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And perhaps the Department could respond
at a later time because the questions are more general in scope, yeah. You know, perhaps the
Department can tell us what the cost is to actually implement the Code that you are requesting us to
approve in terms of whether or not grandfathering is going to be appropriate in certain subdivisions or
neighborhoods. Secondly, because the Department continuously look at more sophisticated equipment,
that sophistication in a large part has to do with size of the equipment, as well, because of the multifaceted needs of the equipment. Thirdly, whether or not the implementation of the Code as being
recommended for approval by this body, was it implications on, on housing costs as the Smith
Development letter referred to, whether or not those will have impacts on the continuing escalating cost
of housing in this County. So, Chairman, perhaps, you know, I can wait for a response because we
could deal with it later, but perhaps if the Department could provide us that additional information or
provide me with that information, I'd appreciate it. Thanks.
CHAIR MOLINA: So noted, Member Mateo. Chief, do you have any other comments at this point to Member
Mateo's concerns or is that something you would prefer to respond to in writing at a later time?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Chair, we'll try and address maybe some of the issues. I'm not sure we can address it
all but I guess the staff and I would like to try and answer that. I'll go ahead and let Captain Martin start
us off first.
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MR. MARTIN: Mr. Mateo, thank you very much. I know that Fire Chief Kaupalolo and Deputy Chief Bal,
and as far as the Operations Chiefs, have been looking at bringing in new equipment that can meet
certain needs in certain areas of the community. And so I think that part has been addressed and it will
always continually be with the new minis that we've been bringing in. We understand about the street
widths. As far as the grandfathering, we can't go back .. .(change tape) . .. and make someone widen a
road or change something unless they come in with a permit or they're going to build a development
that's gonna go through a narrow road where we can have them widen it by denying their permit until
they can make the changes. But in the existing ones we wouldn't have any recourse, you know, to make
them do it if they don't want to make any changes. As far as the cost, we look at life safety, fire
protection. We do look at the cost but it's not as important. Of course, we're not paying for it, it's the
developer, and they always have money and cost in their mind and any way that they can cut costs on
projects. Fire Department continually remind ourselves that we can't get involved in that to a certain
point. We need to be reasonable. We understand that it does cost money to provide things for life
safety. Where does that cost end? And that's the big question. How much do we lean on the
developers to pay for things to make life safety ... life safer for all of us, and that, that's a tough ... it's
a tough job. It's a tough issue and I don't believe there's any hard fast answer to that, and it's something
that we address and any answer we come up with, when it cost money, the developers are against it. So
it's difficult.
We have been pushing for sprinkler systems. Whenever you sprinkler a facility, it allows you to get
away from the required road widths. So it's not something where we make the road widths it's concrete
that you have to abide by this. The Fire Code does allow you to have a more narrow road width if you
sprinkler the building and that adds cost. So it's something the developers need to juggle around on how
they want to approach it. But we have addressed some of the questions that you've brought up and
thank you very much for bringing that up.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Captain. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Mateo. Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Captain Martin, thank you for that response in
regards to sprinklers in the homes. Question that I have is that whenever there's change in equipment or
standards that you folks have, do you folks meet with the Public Works Engineering Standards
Committee to review some of this new equipment that's been brought in so that, you know, things like
road width can be addressed at that time? The other thing is that the excellent point that you brought out
is in regards to sprinkler systems in the homes. You know, with sprinkler systems in the homes,
although it add costs, it's public safety that we look at and if it' s gonna reduce the width of the roadway,
then I think both, you know, it might end up a wash. You know, things like that should be considered,
you know, with the Standards Committee in regards to their review. So how often do you meet or do
you meet at all?
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief or anyone from the Department. Who wants to take that hot potato?

- 23-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

January 3, 2006

MR. KAUPALOLO: Chair, our response is that, yeah, we have not met with the, I guess, Public Works
Committee maybe as often as we'd like to. But certainly, the issue has been explored in the past two
years here the different things that have ... the Department has, I guess, moved forward on including
new equipment out there.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair and Department, you know, for me I would suggest that if you
could meet with the Public Works people, you know, whenever there's changes in the Fire Department
that may affect infrastructure that the Department go ahead and do so.
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Pontanilla, if! can respond to that. You know, Scott, you know, mentioned he works
pretty close with them especially if there's an issue with an ongoing project or project that's coming up.
We pretty much have a good communication with them so we will continue to work with them and
especially in these areas where there's possibility of a conflict, yeah. But as mentioned earlier, you
know, we have worked with them and we are pretty much aware of some of the things that we need to
address in terms of applying the Fire Code and looking at the life safety part of it.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, my question is more as it regards to one of the subchapters. I'm
looking at Page 35, which is under Administrative enforcement, Mr. Chairman, .50 . . . 450 is the
subchapter. You know, I've been listening to some of the comments of my colleagues and I would
agree that many times you try to make the adjustments/corrections at the drawings or plan stage.
However, there's many times when in actual post-construction, the issue comes down to enforcement
and there's many areas where without those illegal parking, you have legal road widths for our
equipment to pass safely to mitigate or put out the disaster or emergency. My thing is, you know,
maybe the Department since its authorized by the Code, do you have rules already promulgated, Chief,
that allows your trucks and your men when they're doing their regular patrols and call outs to start citing
those things that are a hazard to the Department's response? Because I can tell you now, my sister this
weekend, if her house caught on fire, there's no way the truck was gonna pass all those parked cars. No
way. You would have had to move about six to eight vehicles before you could even make it through
with your equipment on Wilikona Place.
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief or Captain Martin or Lieutenant English, can you respond.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So I'm sure when it was approved, the subdivision met the road widths.
There's signs "No Parking" in the cul-de-sac, but there's cars in the cul-de-sac. So why wouldn't you
use this option and start citing?
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief, is there somebody, sorry, we'll yield to Corporation Counsel. Mr. Kim.
MR. KIM: Mr. Chair, under the Code, the Police have the authority to cite for a vehicle-- 24-
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Doesn't the Police ...
MR. KIM: --parking violation.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I thought our firefighters also have the authority to cite violations?
MR. KIM: They have the authority to cite Fire Code violations, but what you mentioned right now is a traffic
violation, parking in a cul-de-sac, not to enforce the Code. They have, they have-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So the inability to-MR. KIM: --the authority to ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --respond is not a Fire Code violation?
MR. KIM: No.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Could they promulgate a rule under the Administrative Enforcement Section
to make that an infraction and a violation? Ifthey could cite those,-MR. KIM: So whenever ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --that the law authorizes them, you know, fine not to exceed $1,000. That'll
catch people's attention.
MR. KIM: We could put that in the Code. You give them the authority to respond ... when responding to an
emergency and their access is blocked by illegally parked vehicles, something to that effect.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So under the Administrative Enforcement that is not clear?
MR. KIM: No. The Administrative Enforcement is just ... generally deals with fire inspections and Fire Code
violations, not on an emergency response. There is a section for criminal prosecution for Fire Code
violations also. As it exists now the ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just bring it up, Mr. Corp. Counsel, since it brings up the points that the
Chief can detennine anything in violation of this chapter. So I'm thinking the whole Code, right?
MR. KIM: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I'm not ... I'm not here to debate it, Chair. I just bring it up that I
think there be provided the Department and the Chief a tool to address certain things. That I don't have
a problem allowing firefighters that is applied by State law to start citing violations also.
MR. KIM: I believe under the prior section, under 16.04B.440, it starts on Page 34.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Correct.
MR. KIM: The Chief can actually ask for citation books to start issuing citations and we've started that
process. We have to get permission from the Administrative Judge from the District Court in order to
do this.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Then let me just ask this question then, is the Chief and the Department
willing to go and have this part of their operations and responsibilities? You asking us to keep provided
in the law. If it's a tool you not going to utilized, then why have it?
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Chair, if I may respond? Thank you, Mr. Hokama. You know, the intent for us was
again to look at the big picture of what was out there and the amount of work that our Fire Prevention
and our personnel doing out there. This would really increase the workload that we have out there. So
we need to take a hard look on this and then we'll also look at how beneficial would this be for us, is this
something that we could do with the personnel we have, is this something that would be positive, you
know, both for us and the public. Somewhat, yeah, for us it's fire safety so we would want to really be
proactive to that particular approach. We feel that that is the appropriate time now for us. As our
popUlation increases and we look at some of our existing subdivisions, they really create situations for
us that we have to be real flexible, as Val mentioned earlier, to parallel Mr. Mateo's questions here. But
it is something that we have worked ... we are working with, our Corporation Counsel with Mr. Kim, in
trying to see if we could utilize that particular tool. What I do want to share with you all is that we don't
want to get out there and use that as a hammer. We think that, you know, we already have a lot going
for us there. Even if we did get out there, we cite a whole bunch of cars, would that allow us to move
through that particular area if it was obstructed? Seriously, at that time of the morning I don't think the
cars would be moving anyway. We would have to be, again, very flexible in our response trying to get
into that particular area. But the aftereffect would be, yes, if we had the tools, we probably could cite it,
those cars would probably be all ticketed and somebody in the morning would wake up with not a very
great New Year's Day, I guess. But in essence that's how we ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It's better than losing a life, Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: That's correct and I agree. And that's why we're taking the proactive measure, yeah.
The bottom line would be if we would be able to enforce it and we just didn't want to have something
on the books that we really couldn't enforce.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, no hammers doesn't seem to be working in this County. I'm done.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any other questions? We'll go Member Johnson,
followed by Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My questions have to do with . . . on Page 20, under the Required
installations, and this would be for the fire flow, the hydrant spacing. And because of what has been
occurring on agricultural land where you've got a slightly different requirement, I can understand
because of the acreage under rural and then also agriculture, is there still a requirement where there's no
dwelling, that a hydrant be placed in an agricultural area if there's no dwelling or is this only triggered
when the person comes in for the building permit to go into an ag subdivision. Because I see the
required rate of flow is 500 gallons per minute and then 500-foot spacing between the hydrants.
CHAIR MOLINA: And Department.
MR. ENGLISH: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Johnson. The section you're reading is pretty much for a new
subdivision ... new ag subdivision requirements so the streets that are serving the lots, we need hydrant
space every 500 feet with a flow of 500 gallons a minute. Basically, when we wrote this Code, we just
copied the Water Standards so we're kind of consistent with what they're gonna ... before it was 250
gallons a minute for ag so we bumped it to 500 because the Water Standards also bumped them to 500.
On an existing agriculture lot and if somebody comes in for a building permit that is not served by any
hydrants, we adopted ... three years ago we adopted NFPA 1141, 1142 for that rural fire fighting ...
water supply for rural firefighting. Then we do the calculations based on the size house they building.
They'll give us like an onsite tank or they put fire sprinklers in their house to meet the Code.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and the reason I'm asking this is because with some of the new
agricultural subdivisions where they're talking about clustering the housing or some of our smart growth
concepts. If you have cluster housing which would be concentrated in a smaller area, do you apply the
same standards? Because, you know, I mean if there's ... if there's an incentive for compelling people,
particularly in new subdivisions, to want to cluster their houses as opposed to just the sprawl that we're
seeing all over the island, then I'm kind of looking at ways that we could either encourage or discourage
that kind of building. You know, at least from the Fire Code perspective because if you have cluster
housing, you . . . it might be better for you not to have, you know, let's say that same spacing
requirement. You know, if you could accomplish the same kind of goal. So is there any flexibility
within this Code at all to encourage people that would be looking at that concept, as opposed to be just
doing your typical sprawl?
CHAIR MOLINA: Lieutenant English.
MR. ENGLISH: Yeah. Right now when we do the codes on the subdivision we enforce the water supply based
on the zoning. So it would be like ag, 500 rule. I think we got that rule up to a 1,000 gallons, residential
1,000 gallons, and then when you get to the commercial with 50 to 2,000 gallons a minute. And I think
Mr. Hokama brought this up at the last meeting we had about trying to get the maxed out two acres
agriculture lots get the fire flow bigger because the housing they're building is not ... the 500 gallons a
minute is not going to work for these 5,000 square foot house. Five thousand square foot house
probably needs about 1,800 gallons a minute fire flow to contain. The way I've been recommending ...
a few of the builders I encouraging where are you guys ... oh, you are 20 minutes from the Fire Station,
just sprinkler you guys house. I mean your insurance is going to be less, probably pay for itself, and I
would say 50 percent do do it and 50 percent say no. They'll just make their house and, and take a risk.
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To try and enforce that in a residential area that's going to be very hard because basically we plan our
street widths, the fire flow based on the zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and this I guess is connected with part of our subdivision problems
and part of our other work that we have yet to complete with regard to what's happening with our
agricultural land. But if you and I'm not saying to hold up the whole bill for this particular issue, but if
you guys could maybe talk when you're speaking with Subdivisions, look at how we can incorporate
some incentives for doing cluster building within the Fire Code, you know, to encourage that or doing
sprinkling or whatever you're gonna do. But I don't want to penalize people that are genuinely farming
because they may build a small house and I don't want to add cost to that. So even if it's above a certain
square footage, I'm looking at ... just this morning I drove by a huge bunch of new homes up above
Puamana. Those homes are massive and they're sprawled out, you know, all over the hillside and I'm
looking at because the footprint of the actual home is so massive and I don't know if they have
swimming pools or what, but my thought would be that if it is as Mr. Hokama, what you had mentioned,
ifit is for just a small farm dwelling that's under a certain square footage, I could understand, you know,
applying certain standard. But where it's for a massive home and particularly with the ohanas and the
garages and how they're sprawling out, I would try and see if there's some way that you could
incorporate into that some kind of flexibility in the Code. If they're going cluster, fine, but if they're not
going, if they're going to sprawl and they're above a certain square footage, what can we do to compel
them to either sprinkler or to have a higher fire flow apropos of the square footage of the dwelling?
MR. ENGLISH: Yeah. A lot is . . . a lot is determined by the developer. The last ... I'm gonna use
subdivision names, Launiupoko, Puamana, they gave me the 8-inch line. They gave me the 1,500
gallons a minute. Country Estates, they gave me the 8-inch line. I mean I just, you know what, give me
a break. You not building farm dwelling. You guys building estates. Give me the bigger fire flow and
they did the 8-inch line. Some of 'em they put their boxing gloves on. No, the Code only says this,
that's all we're gonna give you, and I cannot enforce more because my Code only allows me to a 6-inch
line. And like I said it's a lot to do with the developer, probably costs, but West Maui Land, like I said,
the part is they give me all the bigger lines. So I mean I bless them because they gave me the bigger
lines. The Ukumehame one planning, they give me a 12-inch line because it's gonna be big lots and
probably bigger house is gonna be built, but they gave me massive water lines. So I mean it's a lot to do
with the developer how they want to sell their subdivision, I'm thinking.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And these are potable water lines or doesn't it matter?
MR. ENGLISH: Yeah. Some are County-owned, some are private-owned ... private-owned water sources.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, when you go to hook up, let's say to the hydrant, do you care what's
coming through the line? You know, whether it's slightly saline water or ...
MR. ENGLISH: Yeah. Our Code doesn't ... we can use salt water-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. ENGLISH: --or brackish water, whatever. Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Just so that it,-MR. ENGLISH: It doesn't say what kind of water.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --it can come through the line.
MR. ENGLISH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: What does that do to your equipment though if it's saline?
MR. ENGLISH: Well, we had fire before that we actually got salt water through our trucks just to fight the fire.
I mean water is water. I guess we just flush the trucks out as best as we can. What kind of long-term
damage to the trucks, like I said, I had seen that we used ocean water before.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay. Well, I'm not going to belabor this because perhaps some of it is
related to ago On Page 28, with regard to ag fires, is that portion specific to when we have cane bums?
And that's No.8. It's on Page 28. That's toward the top of the page.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Excuse me, Chair. Ms. Johnson, can you repeat that question for us again?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Is that particular section, where it says agricultural fires permitted by State
Department of Health, would that be specific to cane fires or when they're doing announced bums or is
this something else?
CHAIR MOLINA: I guess the question, Member Johnson, is that inclusive of cane ... the regular scheduled
cane fires, as well as ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. 'Cause what I'm looking at is, you know, if that is specific just to
like when you're doing a regular cane bum and they do the announcement in the paper or is this
something else, like let's say you want to bum for a fire break? Ijust was wondering if this was specific
to cane fires.
CHAIR MOLINA: Lieutenant English.
MR. ENGLISH: Right now anyone that has a agriculture bum permit issued by the Health Department, they
first have to apply all the Health Department guidelines where like I said, is this a no bum day, or
burning will be allowed. If it's a bum day, then all they required is to call the in-district Fire Station that
they're going to be lighting a fire, whether it be Kula or HC&S, time the fire is going to be burned. I
know HC&S goes to the next level by putting public broadcast or newspaper the areas they're gonna
bum. They are not required to do that by the Fire Code. They do that on their own to let the public
aware that they're gonna be doing cane burning in certain areas.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and I notice that preceding that, that particular section, under ... on
Page 27 under 3.17, where it says a hold harmless and indemnification statement is part of the permit
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application. Now, is that also a part of this permit for the ag fires where they execute a hold harmless
agreement or indemnification or is that only specific to the other items under the previous section under
... ?
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief. While the Department is looking, Corp. Counsel, do you have any comments you
could add while the Department is looking . . . preparing their comments to Member Johnson's
questions? Members, upon the completion of Member Johnson's questions, the Chair would like to take
a recess and when we come back, we'll recognize Member Anderson with her questions. Department
would you like to ... we'll just go ahead into our recess and give you more time to come up with an
answer for Member Johnson? Okay, why don't we do that. Members, it is 10:38. The Chair would like
to take a morning recess. We'll return at 10:50. The Department will have a response for Member
Johnson's questions to be followed by Member Anderson with a question. Meeting in recess until
10:50. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

10:38 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:52 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel). .. The Committee of the Whole meeting for January 3, 2006 is now back in
session. Thank you very much, Members, for that break. When we last left, the Department was
coming up with a response for Member Johnson's questions. But before we hear from the Department,
the Chair would like to formally introduce one of our new analysts to our Council Services staff, Kim
Willenbrink. Welcome to the County. Thank you. And thank you for joining us. We appreciate it.
ChiefKaupalolo, your response to Member Johnson's inquiry.
MR. KAUP ALOLO: Thank you, Chair. I'm gonna defer this to Captain Martin to give you a more specific
answer on this.
CHAIR MOLINA: Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Ms. Johnson, specifically going back to that section with the indemnification that you
mentioned that would be, for that one, only to abate a fire hazard, which again, would need to be
through the Department of Health. We do not issue a permit for that. It would be done with the
Department of Health.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And Mr. Chair, the only reason that I'm asking is to clarify because so
many times when the State Department of Health issues the permits and we're looking at
indemnification, what I'm trying to at least look at logically would be if the State has, as a part of their
permit process, a requirement for indemnification, that when they issue a permit, if and oftentimes the
State does this, they have requirements where they will say that, oh, the State in issuance of this permit
is held harmless where they indemnify essentially themselves. You know, they're just saying, well, I
abdicate all responsibility. But what I would like to see in the end, it doesn't have to be done at this
meeting, but at least for consistency, if there is a requirement by the State that there either is
indemnification or hold harmless agreement, that they require when they allow their permits to be issued
that we have something that's similar in our Code or at least have the ability to include that. Because so
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many times if we're litigated against because, you know, let's say a permit was issued by the State and
they're held harmless, but all of a sudden a fire got away on someone and then there's no
indemnification to protect the County, guess who's gonna get sued the County and particularly if you
don't respond promptly. In some of these remote areas we can't respond maybe as quickly as we would
like to but that's the reason why I'm asking the question and if Staff might be able to see whether there
is a requirement through the Department of Health on the State and what is tied to the issuance of their
permits and whether they're indemnified or whether a hold harmless agreement has to be executed. So
that, that's my main reason for asking those questions. I had one final thing, Mr. Chair, and this is not
... I looked through this and there's only one area I guess regarding fencing and that was in I guess
where it's fencing for containers where it specifies how close I guess the container could be to a ...
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Johnson, could you give us a reference point?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: There is no reference point that I've been able to find in here but I just
wanted to ask within the Code and because of the newer materials that are being used in all of these
fencing which is now plastic it looks like that's surrounding almost every subdivision that I can see
that's coming up. Is there a standard either through the Building Code or through the Fire Code if the
Fire Department is aware of it, requiring that that material that's used in that fencing withstand certain
fire hazards, like it be non-flammable. Because I know some of this fencing, it's totally all plastic. I
mean forget about being ugly but it's, you know, it seems to me that plastic is a highly flammable and
toxic material. So I wondered if you had taken a look at that with regard to the Fire Code and
particularly because these are the materials that are being used that are surrounding all of our
subdivisions.
CHAIR MOLINA: ChiefKaupalolo or Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Ms. Johnson, are you referring to flammable combustible liquids or liquid propane tanks?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That was the part, but I was just looking in general throughout your Code
when you're revisiting this with regard to the actual Code itself. When you're looking at materials that
are utilized in construction in a home or around a home, must those fencing materials be subject to the
same standards as those materials that are utilized in the home itself. Because if let's say you have a
highly flammable fence that's surrounding a whole entire subdivision, is that addressed or have you
taken a look at that within the Fire Code?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I guess Department or Corporation Counsel Kim.
MR. KIM: That item or issue would be taken up under the Uniform Building Code on materials.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So it's not addressed in the Fire Code at all?
MR. KIM: No, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And because we're looking at safety and other measures, why would ...
why would that not be?
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MR. KIM: Because the Building Code would go through that type of testing .. .(change tape) . .. and set
standards for plastic materials.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, but when the fences in close proximity to a home which could cause
the home, you know, to I guess be more subject to a more intense fire, wouldn't you be looking at that
also?
MR. KIM: The Department would leave that up to the Building Code.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. KIM: They have asked on occasion under I think it's called ... there's a board that actually looks at
different types of materials that fall outside of the Building Code and they actually require the person
proposing to use this type of material to do the testing and pay for the testing to make sure it meets up to
the Building Code standards. So building materials and what's used for building materials have been
standardized and that comes under the Building Code.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and then with regard to somebody that's doing ... let's say they have
a fire in their backyard and they have one of these fences-MR. KIM: They wouldn't be ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --they're still no requirements?
MR. KIM: Under the open burning, there would be requirements as to how far away from any type of structure
they would be able to have a fire.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, alright. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson. And prior to recognizing Member Anderson, the
Chair would like to inform the Committee there are a couple of Committee Members that do have to
leave soon so I would ask that any other questions after Member Anderson be forwarded to the
Committee. The Chair's intent is to take action on this proposed bill today. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. First, quick question. On your Plan Review Waiver
Fund, how much is currently in that fund? Do you know? Ballpark?
CHAIR MOLINA: Department.
MR. KIM: You mean the Plan Review Fund?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, for the Fire Department.
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CHAIR MOLINA: As an FYI, Chief Kaupalolo, did send a November 28 th letter to the Committee. I don't
know if that might help as well. I don't know if ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is the amount in that, in that letter?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. I believe there's some figures listed in there. I don't know if the Chief wanted to
give comment. I don't know what the updated amount is, but I believe there is on the second page it
states from January 1, 2005 through September 30, 2005, the fund received 276,000 deposits. Chief.
MR. KAUP ALOLO: Thank you, Chair. Ms. Anderson, in our letter I guess if you have a copy of it dated
November 28 t \ on the second Page 2, we did take a look and provide you with some figures from
January 1, 2005 through January, excuse, September 30, 2005, where the fund did receive somewhere of
276,000 in deposits. Currently, infonned just by Captain Martin, we're up to a little more than 400,000
at the present time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Total in the fund?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That ... that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great! And do you guys have a backlog in plan review checks? Are
people waiting for you to get to them? Is it quite a bit of a backlog?
CHAIR MOLINA: Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Ms. Anderson, we don't have a backlog on plans review. It depends ... if we get a large
project, let's say someone's going to build a hotel and some of these plans can weigh up to 70 pounds,
just huge, what we would do is take time reviewing it and the developer and the pennit applicant
understands that because of the complexity of the plan. But at the same time plans that are coming in
that are smaller in size, not much needs to be looked at, that continues. I would say for an average
commercial small business depending on the time of the year, especially your holidays it kind of slows
down, but we ... many times we could tum it around in a week. When we get a whole bunch, it may
take two weeks for the smaller ones, then the bigger ones are set aside, and you know, in between
breaks, you know, Lieutenant English does a great job on reviewing the big ones, but yet also letting the
smaller ones keep moving. And it's a juggling ... an art that he does a great job at, but I wouldn't
consider us backlogged as far as, you know, people waiting for our plans.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Waiting months or something to get ...
MR. MARTIN: Yeah, definitely nothing, nothing like a month or anything like that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Great. Because it's my understanding that the Water Department
is backlogged quite a bit in approving subdivision requests. The other question I had was in adopting
this State Fire Code, which is also the Unifonn Fire Code, which will now become known as the Maui
County Fire Code, in adopting that we will also be adopting the Hawaii Administrative Rules that go
along with the State Fire Code? I mean not that we will be officially adopting them, but if we adopt the
- 33-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

January 3, 2006

Fire Code, the Administrative Rules that have already been adopted in conjunction with the Fire Code
would go along with ... I mean, am I clear or am I confusing?
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: These Administrative Rules would be applicable all of a sudden in Maui
County because they're part of the implementation of the State Fire Code. Is that correct?
MR. KIM: I would have to get back to you on that. I haven't seen those Administrative Rules.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You haven't seen them?
MR. KIM: Which was ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We all have them.
MR. KIM: This?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Let me see the front.
MR. KIM: It says Department of Labor and Industrial Relations-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. KIM: --State Fire Council, State Code.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. KIM: State Fire Code.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. KIM: These are as I understand them the amendments to
well as this Accumulative Supplement.

Uniform

Code and this came with

as

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, they call them Administrative Rules.
MR. KIM: That's correct so you are right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So we're adopting these, as well as the State Fire Code?
MR. KIM: That's correct, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Administrative Rules?

So anybody in Maui County is going to have to comply with the
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MR. KIM: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So ...
MR. KIM: The Administrative Rules that's entitled "Title 12, Subtitle 7, Chapter 45.1".
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. So I'm assuming that possibly Captain Martin or somebody in the
Fire Department has gone through these and is familiar? Okay, good. So I have just a couple of little
questions - quick questions. On Page 45.1-15, there's a reference to amusement buildings. An
automatic sprinkler system shall be installed in all permanent and portable amusement buildings unless
it's less ... there's an exception that if it's a portable amusement building less than 1,000 square feet.
What's an amusement building?
CHAIR MOLINA: Department. I guess we need a definition of amusement building is what we're looking at
in terms of fire.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And there's no definition. I already checked. At least I couldn't find it
under their definitions.
MR. KIM: I believe the amusement building might be defined in this-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, in there.
MR. KIM: --under 1007.2.12.1.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's a page number?
MR. KIM: Probably Page 138 ... 1.138.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you read it, Mr. Kim? You know, my concern, Mr. Chair, is that
we're, we're adopting a 1997 Uniform Fire Code, a 1999 Accumulative Supplement to the Fire Code, as
well as these Administrative Rules that were ... it doesn't show that they were, their date of adoption.
Have they been adopted by the State or ... there's no effective date of adoption attached to these rules.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Kim.
MR. KIM: First question, amusement building,-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. KIM: --is a building or portion thereof temporary or permanent used for entertainment or educational
purposes and which contains a system which transports passengers or provides a walkway through a
course so arranged that the required means of egress are not apparent due to theatrical distractions, are
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disguised, or are not readily available due to the method of transportation through the building or
structure. That's an amusement building.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's clear as mud.
MR. KIM: Well, that would be like that EK Fernandez fun ride where the children go in and the thing moves
and there's like a house of mirrors where you might get lost.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, okay. Okay. . . . {laughter} . .. Yeah. That's probably the only
example actually. Thank you for that, Mr. Kim. I appreciate that 'cause I was just concerned that it
didn't apply to these large tents that we use for, you know, large gatherings that people put up. And
then also on the next page, back to the Administrative Rules, 45.1-16, there's reference that an automatic
sprinkler system shall be installed throughout every apartment house over one story containing 17 or
more dwellings. Every congregate residence over one story have an occupant load of 50 or more. So
I'm wondering, is this gonna ... this would not be retroactive? Is that correct?
MR. KIM: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So any apartment building built subsequent to the adoption of this, there's
gonna be requirement for the sprinkler system?
MR. KIM: That's correct. After the adoption of this Fire Code, anyone who applies to get one of those
buildings ... apartment buildings that fall under those conditions will have to be sprinkled.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Db-huh. So it seems that there, Mr. Chair, there's a lot of new regulations
here that I'm wondering does the Fire Department ... does the Fire Department have any intention of
doing a press release or any kind of public education so that people are aware of what these new
standards are gonna be?
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief Kaupalolo.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Member Anderson. We would have to ... I think that would be the proper
thing to do to notify and at least get the public aware of the new Fire Code.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I think that would really be helpful and there's so much here that
you're gonna know whether or not it's new. There may be things here that we're already doing. But I
see a lot of stuff that seems like it would be new and I think we'd want people to know about it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Captain Martin,-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: At least the high points.
CHAIR MOLINA: --I think you had a follow-up response. Okay. Captain Martin.
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MR. MARTIN: Ms. Anderson, thank you very much. As far as sprinkling the apartment buildings, that's
currently in our Code now so it wouldn't be any drastic change or anything.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. MARTIN: When you go so many stories or over so many units, you could build an apartment building
that's one story with ten units in it and you don't have to sprinkler it. So we currently have something
similar to that ... like that in the Fire Code right now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see. Good. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Committee Members, at this point the Chair will close off
questioning of the Department for the rest of today. Any future questions, please you're welcome to go
through the Committee Staff to forward additional questions on this matter. Chair's intent today is to
take action on the proposed Fire Code. At this point, the Chair will entertain a motion to support the
proposed bill.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Pontanilla. Member Kane,
as the maker of the motion, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just one brief comment. I think one word that sticks out in the
whole discussion that may be perceived differently by depending on who's reading it is the word
"flexibility". Because the word "flexibility" basically means discretionary which some people would
take as arbitrary and I think the public gets a little nervous about that as far as equal application. Now,
by all means, my comment does not reflect any individual in particular at this point in time but the more
flexibility you provide, the more potential for having differences of interpretation over a long period of
time. So I just state that for the record. That's the one nervousness I have when we look at using that
word "flexibility" a lot. We just need to be mindful of that because it impacts our citizenry in different
ways depending. So hopefully, the application and I think Member Hokama talked about enforcement
and I hope we understand that that flexibility falls in that area as well. And as we've seen sometimes
application doesn't even exist as far as enforcement and that makes it very difficult for those who rely
on the application of law to protect their quality of life. Overall, I'm very supportive of this. I think we
need to move forward and we need to update. Mr. Hokama being active in the discussion over at HSAC
last month when we had Mr. Russ Saito, the Comptroller for the State, come forward with the State
overall codes and having a State Code that everybody can rely on and having the flexibility within the
counties to make their unique issues apparent or visible in their Code I think is very important as well.
So I'm glad that the Chief folks ... Chief and the Department is aware of that and are participating with
that and we look forward to continued participation from the Department. Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kane. Any other discussion as it relates to the motion on the floor
which is to support the proposed bill which is the State Fire Code? Seeing none. All those in favor
signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, Pontanilla
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING of revised bill, FILING of Committee Report
No. 05-144, and FILING of communication.

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, ChiefKaupalolo, Captain Martin, Lieutenant English. I know it was
a grueling I guess matter over a course of several months but we appreciate all of your efforts in
responding to the inquiries from the Committee. Thank you.
Members, we have two final items for today. First of which is Committee of the Whole Item 4(5),
which is the indemnification authorization of Alice Lee, Veranio S. Tongson, et al. vs. County of Maui,
Department of Housing and Human Concerns, et aI., Civil No. CV05-00683.

COW-4(5)

INDEMNIFICATION AUTHORIZATION (ALICE LEE - VERANIO S. TONGS ON, ET
AL. VS. COUNTY OF MAUl, DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND HUMAN
CONCERNS, ET AL., CIVIL NO. CV05-00683 SOM LEK) (C.c. No. 05-23)

CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee did receive this correspondence dated December 20 th from the Corporation
Counsel's Office requesting the consideration of this proposed resolution. And from the Corporation
Counsel's Office we have Cheryl Tipton who's been patiently waiting in the wings to brief us on this
matter and if there are no objections, Members, the next item which is Committee of the Whole Item
4(6) is connected to this item that we're currently discussing. I would ask Ms. Tipton to give us a brief
overview on that matter as well to follow her comments on this matter. If there are no objections and
then Chair will make a recommendation afterwards. Ms. Tipton.
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MS. TIPTON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Council Members. On October 27,2005, a lawsuit
was filed in Federal Court, which you have a copy of, by three County employees seeking an
unspecified amount in damages. The lawsuit alleges a number of issues, primarily violations of
constitutional and civil rights, employment discrimination on the basis of gender and retaliation,
violation of the Hawaii Whistleblowers' Act, intentional infliction of emotional distress, breach of
implied contract and defamation. Besides the County, the lawsuit names Director of Housing and
Human Concerns Alice Lee, and the County employee, Wendy Stebbins, as individual defendants.
There are separate requests before Council for indemnification for these two individuals because the
claims differ slightly between the two individual defendants but the lawsuits are the same issues.
Mr. Tongson filed his claim after Ms. Stebbins lodged a complaint of discrimination against him with
Director Lee and an investigation was done. The facts obtained during the investigations supported the
complaint that Mr. Tongson had engaged in discrimination against Ms. Stebbins. Ordinarily, these are
confidential investigations, but it's been made public by this lawsuit. The complaint filed in Federal
Court wasn't clear about which claims, as I've said, were alleged against which defendants. I have
clarified at this point with plaintiffs' attorney that the claims against Director Lee are for violations of
the First Amendment, the Hawaii Whistleblowers' Act, for the Federal/Civil Act under USC (1983), and
intentional infliction of emotional distress.
The claims against Ms. Stebbins are fewer. They are for violations of intentional infliction of emotional
distress and defamation. Based on my preliminary . . . I'm still trying to determine which claims
plaintiffs Javier and Nemoto are asserting against either of the individuals. Their claims involved
primarily issues related to the application of the HUD Housing Section 8 Program.
Based on my preliminary investigation and discussions with the staff members, it is my opinion that the
allegations are generally without merit and there aren't any criminal allegations asserted, and therefore, I
recommend that the County indemnify both Director Lee and Wendy Stebbins in this lawsuit against
them as individuals. And I would just remind Council that if it does become necessary to discuss any
strategy or further opinion about our liability in this case, that I would ask that the matter be taken up in
executive session.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tipton. Committee Members, first any questions in open session on
the first item, Committee of the Whole Item 4(5), in open session? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, my question I believe Ms. Tipton did make some earlier
comments. The suit that is on the attachment marked as Exhibit "A", Mr. Chairman, names three
plaintiffs, yet we are being asked for consideration of ... that we only are naming one plaintiff. So can
we get additional comment that would not jeopardize the case? Are we being taken to court by three
people?
MS. TIPTON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But we are only being asked to indemnify against ... for our Administrator
against one party only?
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CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Tipton.
MS. TIPTON: Let me try to clarify, Mr. Chair, Mr. Hokama. There are three plaintiffs in the case. Each of
them have some different claims.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Sorry can you ... (inaudible) . ..
MS. TIPTON: Oh, okay.... (adjusts microphone) . .. Thank you. I can't tell from here. Thank you.
Mr. Tongson's complaint involves some issues related to the sexual harassment investigation that was
made against him. He also has been joined by two other employees in the Department of Housing and
Human Concerns in bringing some whistleblowing claims regarding the implementation of the Section 8
Housing Program. So it's in a wayan odd combination because Mr. Tongson has issues that the other
two plaintiffs do not share with him, and each of them has brought complaints against the County and
two individuals, Ms. Lee and Ms. Stebbins. So you have to kind of keep them separated out and the
claims against, as I identified earlier, are different for Director Lee and Ms. Stebbins. Does that answer
your question? And I am asking for the County to indemnify the two individuals. I've already filed an
answer on behalf of the County itself and the County's responsibility would be under a theory of
respondeat superior, which means we are the employer and so we are ultimately responsible for the
actions of our employees.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. Because you have shared with us that some of the
issues concerned Section 8, which is Housing and Urban Development funds from the Federal
government, has the Federal Agency been notified of these legal proceedings?
MS. TIPTON: Yes, they have. They have a whole procedure for notification and they are aware of the lawsuit.
I will be talking to their regional counsel in California. At this point, they're not going to be involved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Are they investigating any issues regarding the application of Section 8
funds?
MS. TIPTON: Certainly, they will be obligated to look into those allegations. And I think we've also had some
contact by accountants who are reviewing the records.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is there anything you wish to disclose regarding those specific HUD issues
at this time?
MS. TIPTON: It appears to me that HUD monitors our program regularly and that any concerns they have have
been shared with the Department any corrections that needed to be made. So I believe based on my
initial investigation that we're in compliance with what HUD requires of us.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm done. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Committee Members, any other questions on this matter,
Committee of the Whole Item 4(5), in open session for Ms. Tipton? Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. After reviewing the issue here, on Page 12, it named
me as ... it named me as a government employee. Will I be able to ask questions, make comments,
Corporation Counsel?
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Tipton.
MS. TIPTON: Mr. Chair, as a person named you will be part of the discovery process and you are not
fortunately named as a defendant. As a party you have more rights to participate in the lawsuit, but I
think it's a far better position not to be a defendant at this point. But, yes, you would have the right to
disclose your position on the allegations related to you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Committee Members, any questions in open session on
Committee ofthe Whole Item 4(6)? Seeing none. Is there any request for executive session? Seeing no
request. The Chair and I guess we'll ... we can take it ... Staff, can we take it a separate motion for
each item for recommendation? Okay. Members, we'll address Committee of the Whole Item 4(5),
which is the indemnification authorization for Director Lee. The Chair's recommendation is to support
the proposed resolution. Is there a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Johnson. Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Seconded by Member Tavares. Any discussion? Member Johnson, as the maker of the
motion, to be followed by Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just feel that regardless of these allegations, which is all they are at this
point, that we should indemnify because what Ms. Lee's activities and later on when we get to
Ms. Stebbins, that their activities were in connection with their work. So therefore, we, I believe, have a
duty and an obligation to provide that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes. I just wanted to ask this indemnification is only and they're only
being sued as employees of the County. There's no personal liability involved in this?
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Tipton.
MS. TIPTON: Mr. Chair, Councilman Anderson, yes, they have been sued for individual liability, as well.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so the indemnification request is to protect them personally also?
MS. TIPTON: That's correct because they were doing this in the course of their employment with the County.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. Okay, just wanted clarification. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Any other discussion as it relates to the motion on the floor? Seeing none. All
those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of resolution.

CHAIR MOLINA: Next matter of discussion is Committee of the Whole Item 4(6), which
indemnification authorization of Wendy Stebbins.

COW-4(6}

IS

the

INDEMNIFICATION AUTHORIZATION (WENDY STEBBINS - VERANIO S.
TONGSON, ET AL. VS. COUNTY OF MAUl, DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
HUMAN CONCERNS, ET AL., CIVIL NO. CV05-00683 SOM LEK) (C.c. No. 05-23)

CHAIR MOLINA: The Chair will entertain a motion to support the proposed resolution.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Johnson. Is there a second?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Seconded by Member Kane. Member Johnson, as maker of the motion, any discussion?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. The same comments as the previous one.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Any other discussion? Seeing none. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. Seeing no opposition, Chair will mark that unanimous.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
and Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Tavares.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of resolution.

CHAIR MOLINA: And I believe that takes care of our agenda items for today, Members. It is 11 :30. Any
announcements, Members. Seeing... hearing no announcements, the Chair would like to remind
everyone we do have a 1:30 p.m. Budget and Finance meeting under the leadership of Member Kane so
please all be present and accounted for. Chair would like to thank you all for all your professionalism
and dedication and a great start to this New Year. At this point, if there's no other comments or
announcements, this meeting of the Committee of the Whole for January 3, 2006 is now adjourned .
. . . (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN: 11:30 p.m.

APPROVED BY:

Committee of the Whole
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